
 

 
 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Date:  Wednesday 30 November 2022 
Time: 5.30 pm 
Venue: Rennes Room, Civic Centre, Paris Street, Exeter 
 
Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business. 
 
If you have an enquiry regarding any items on this agenda, please contact Sharon Sissons, 
Democratic Services Officer on 01392 265115. 
 
Entry to the Civic Centre can be gained through the rear entrance, located at the back of the Customer 
Service Centre, Paris Street. 
 
Membership - 
Councillors Wardle (Chair), Moore, D (Deputy Chair), Allcock, Branston, Ellis-Jones, Leadbetter, 
Mitchell, M, Packham, Rees, Snow, Sutton and Warwick 
 

Agenda 
 
Part I: Items suggested for discussion with the press and public present 
   
1    Apologies  

 To receive apologies for absence from Committee Members.  
  
 

 

 
2    Minutes  

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 28 September 2022. 
 

(Pages 3 - 
8)  

3    Declaration of Interests  

 Councillors are reminded of the need to declare any discloseable pecuniary 
interests that relate to business on the agenda and which have not already been 
included in the register of interests, before any discussion takes place on the 
item. Unless the interest is sensitive, you must also disclosure the nature of the 
interest.  In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, you must then leave 
the room and must not participate in any further discussion on the item.  
Councillors requiring clarification should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer 
prior to the day of the meeting. 
  
 

 

 
4    Local Government (Access to Information ) Act - Exclusion of Press and 

Public 
 

 It is considered that the Committee would be unlikely to exclude the press and 
public during the consideration of the items on this agenda, but if it should wish to do 
so, then the following resolution should be passed:  
 

 



"RESOLVED that, under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the particular item(s) of business 
on the grounds that it (they) involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in the relevant paragraph(s) of Part 1, of Schedule 12A of the Act." 
  

5    External Audit Progress Report  

 To receive a verbal report of the External Auditors (Grant Thornton). 
 

 
 
6    External Auditor's Annual Audit Report on Exeter City Council 2020/21  

 To consider the report of the External Auditors (Grant Thornton). 
 

(Pages 9 - 
60)  

7    Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 2  

 To consider the report of the Audit Managers. 
 

(Pages 61 
- 74)  

8    Counter Fraud Strategy  

 To consider the report of the Audit Managers. 
 

(Pages 75 
- 86)  

9    Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Review of Complaints 2021-22  

 To consider the report of the Corporate Manager Executive Support.  
 

(Pages 87 
- 92)  

10    Review of Corporate Risk Register  

 To consider the report of the Chief Executive & Growth Director. 
 

(Pages 93 
- 104) 

Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next Audit and Governance Committee will be held on Wednesday 8 March 2023 at 5.30 pm 
 
Find out more about Exeter City Council by looking at our website http://www.exeter.gov.uk . This will 
give you the dates of all future Committee meetings and tell you how you can ask a question at a 
Scrutiny Committee meeting. Alternatively, contact the Democratic Services Officer (Committees) on 
01392 265115 for further information. 
 
Follow us on: 
Twitter 
Facebook 
 
 
Individual reports on this agenda can be produced in large print on 
request to Democratic Services (Committees) on 01392 265111 

http://www.twitter.com/ExeterCouncil
http://www.facebook.com/ExeterCityCouncil


AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
Wednesday 28 September 2022 

 
 

Present:- 
 
Councillor Tony Wardle (Chair) 
Councillors Moore, D, Allcock, Branston, Ellis-Jones, Leadbetter, Mitchell, M, Packham, 
Rees, Snow, Sutton and Warwick 

 
Also Present 
 
Director Corporate Services, Director Finance, Audit Manager (HK) and Democratic Services 
Officer (SLS) 
 
David Johnson, Audit Manager (Grant Thornton) 

  
19   MINUTES 

 
Subject to the following clarification, in respect of an enquiry in relation to Risk 3, and 
a correction of the Member’s request which was for further information in respect of 
the proposed mitigation to the achievement of Net Zero 2030 to improve national 
communication of Exeter as a leading sustainable city, and whether that had been 
directly or adequately addressed in the identified risk, the minutes of the meeting 
held on 27 July 2022 were taken as read, approved and signed by the Chair as 
correct. 
  

20   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made. 
 
  

21   EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT AND SECTOR UPDATE 
 
The Chair welcomed the Audit Manager, David Johnson from Grant Thornton who 
presented the report, which detailed their work as the Council’s External Auditor 
undertaken as at September 2022. He confirmed the audit deliverables for 2020/21 
with their work having fallen between the close of the 2020/21 audit and the 
commencement of the 2021/22 audit for the Council.  It was anticipated the audit of 
the financial statement would commence shortly and be issued by the 30 November 
2022 target date.  He also referred to the findings of their interim audit work which 
was summarised in the report, and included a follow up to a recommendation in 
2020/21 in relation to journal entry controls in preparation for the completion of the 
2021/22 audit.  
 
The Audit Manager responded to a Member’s question in relation to the programme 
of recommendations from the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) and when any further information was available he would 
provide an update for Members.  
 
The Audit and Governance Committee noted the Progress Report and Sector 
Update.  
 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



22   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  QUARTER 1 
 
The Audit Manager (HK) presented the Internal Audit progress report for the period 
1 April to 30 June 2022, which conformed to the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards. She drew Members’ attention to the key points and advised that the 
majority of agreed actions from previous audit reports were being progressed 
satisfactorily. There was one instance relating to the Business and Commercial 
follow up report where remedial action was not agreed by management during that 
quarter as set out in Section 8.1 of the report. In accordance with the terms of 
reference of this Committee, it was for Members to consider what action, if any, to 
take in respect of the recommendation made. Management had indicated in the 
audit report that due to the current level of activity in commercialisation, reporting 
twice a year was appropriate. In other matters reported, progress against the annual 
plan and the work programme were on target. 
 
A summary of the audit reports undertaken throughout the year was included as 
Appendix A, and the detail of significant governance issues as Appendix B was 
attached to the report.  
 
The Director Finance responded as follows to Members’ enquires on this matter:- 
 
  in offering some clarity of the matter Members were being asked to determine if 

they wished management to have a review of the recommendation and reporting 
timetable of the Commercialisation Update or whether they were satisfied that 
occasional reporting to Scrutiny was appropriate. 

  commercial activity was a critical part of the One Exeter Programme and 
Members should be more regularly appraised. 

  in addressing a comment on staff capacity, regular reporting should be entirely 
manageable. 

  it would be appropriate for this to be raised with the Scrutiny Programme Board. 
  Members’ comments and the wish to expedite a report to the Strategic Scrutiny 

Committee as soon as possible would be passed to the Strategic Management 
Board.  
 

A Member also suggested that the Director be invited to a future meeting of the 
Audit and Governance Committee to update Members on the matter. 

 
The Audit Manager would at the request of a Member, circulate the follow up of the 
Commercialisation audit to Members of the Committee. She also responded to a 
Member’s enquiry in relation to Section 8.2 and confirmed that the deadline date for 
comments on the terms of reference would be reported to the meeting of the 
Greater Exeter Partnership on 30 September, and she would update Members 
accordingly.  
 
RESOLVED that the  
 
(1) Internal Audit Progress Report for the first quarter of the year 2022/23 be noted;  

and  
 
(2) the Committee requested that the Strategic Management Board (SMB) review 

the recommendation made in Section 8.1 of the report. 
  

23   REVIEW OF CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 
 
The Audit Manager (HK) presented the report on the Council’s risk management 
process and provided an update of the Corporate Risk Register to enable the 

Page 4



Committee to monitor and review the Council’s risks. There were changes to two 
of the risks made during the last quarter, in relation to Risk 2 Failure to meet 
Exeter’s Housing supply needs and Risk 6 Failure to deliver the Liveable Exeter 
Programme, both of which have been increased from a medium risk to a high risk. 
Details of the update on each Risk had also been provided by the Strategic 
Management Board.  
 
The Chair welcomed the Director Corporate Services who had been invited to the 
meeting as part of a number of forthcoming invitations to Members of SMB to 
provide further information on the individual risks under their area of responsibility 
on the Corporate Risk Register.  
 
The Director Corporate Services provided a snapshot of the Council’s workforce for 
August 2022, using detail from a metric confirming the workforce’s activity with a 
high level overview of the gender ratio, median pay, age profile, ethnicity, 
recruitment matters, retention and training.  
 
A number of key areas were highlighted including a comprehensive training 
programme offered to staff at appropriate times to ensure that staff were sufficiently 
skilled. An age profile of 37% staff between the ages of 50 and over 60 years meant 
that succession planning was also under constant review. At the other end of the 
age spectrum, there were 11 apprentices employed by the City Council, with the 
legal department seeing its success with the first apprentice having achieved a first 
class degree. It was acknowledged that the recruitment market was extremely 
difficult and research from South West Provincial Employers having indicated that 
local authorities were experiencing difficulties in recruiting for key areas such as 
planning and building control, legal, environmental health, leisure, waste and 
procurement, and attracting HGV drivers and operatives for the waste operation 
was particularly challenging. They have cited uncompetitive salaries, area 
demographics, housing costs, and the undesirability of temporary or fixed term 
contracts as factors. Staff expectations may have changed with some preferring to 
become self-employed or work as consultants. 
 
It was important for Exeter to be the employer of choice (currently being considered 
as part of the One Exeter Programme) and all options are being explored including 
smarter advertising of the excellent working conditions and benefits, speeding up 
the recruitment process and with every area of the Council being clear about the 
importance of succession planning of staff. 
 
Following the presentation, the Director Corporate Services responded to Members’ 
questions:- 
 
  changes in working hours and a flexible working pattern were already available 

for staff.  Further alternatives were being considered by the One Exeter 
Programme.  

  consultation with Unison, who represented staff was standard practice for Exeter 
City Council. 

  there were difficulties in recruiting across the Council and whilst there was no 
evidence to support this, Brexit may have had an impact.  

  every effort was being made to keep up with the challenges of the employment 
market and maintaining the Council’s obligations to meet all equality 
requirements.  

  innovations in recruitment included targeted adverts to be more appealing to the 
individual genders. 

  staff numbers had increased with the insourcing of approximately 200 leisure 
staff. 

Page 5



  job adverts were placed on the Council’s web site, as well as national recruiting 
platforms such as Indeed to broaden the reach. Contact had also been made 
with local schools and colleges in an effort to highlight the range of jobs and skills 
needed as well as the benefits of working for the Council.  

  staff could leave the organisation in a managed way, but the decision to accept 
any requests for voluntary redundancy was based entirely on the business need. 

  statistics for staff with disabilities were collated in the PowerBi metrics. 
  staff shortages were part of a national picture. The measures being taken to 

adequately manage the risk outlined in the Risk Register was appropriate and 
everything that could be done was being done in these difficult times. 

  statistics for employees leaving the organisation in a given time or ‘churn’ were 
collated. Staff retention was vitally important and consideration of the 
employment journey was being looked at as part of the One Exeter Programme.  

  employed staff remained the Council’s preference, but casual staff and 
consultancy staff were employed to meet any fluctuating needs of a particular 
service. There were no staff who could be termed as being on a zero hour’s 
contract, nor had the Council used restrictive trade clauses. 

  understanding the employee journey was important, and whilst the exit interview 
process captured some of the varied reasons people decided to leave, it was just 
as important to understand why new employees came to work for the City 
Council as well. 

  the well-being of staff was a module in the One Exeter Programme. 
  local government pensions were now based on career average salaries. The 

Director Finance added that the local government pensions offered a better 
outcome from a defined benefit, which should be seen as another incentive to 
work for local authorities. 

 
In a further response to Members’ questions, the Director Finance referred to Risk 4 
Maintaining the financial sustainability of the Council and Risk 5 Increased costs of 
all capital building projects, and the further impact from the current economic 
climate and the significant financial pressures facing every local authority, 
household and business. £2.3million savings were required and a decision needed 
to be taken in order to balance the budget for next year along with further decisions 
required to address the impact of increased energy costs. Ear marked reserves 
would protect the Council this year but the One Exeter Programme will be needed 
to deliver savings in the future. SMB would be undertaking a review of the Council’s 
Capital Programme and reporting the outcome to the Executive and Council. The 
current construction market was making projects uneconomic to deliver against a 
range of competing challenges.  
 
A Member proposed inviting the Director Finance to the next meeting to consider 
the financial risks associated with Risk 4 and 5 in more detail. It was also suggested 
that the Director Development be invited to the meeting in March to provide further 
information on Risk 2 - Failure to meet Exeter’s Housing supply needs.  
 
A response would be requested from the Director City Development for the 
following Members’ enquiries on Risk 2 - Failure to meet Exeter's Housing supply 
needs as a planning authority and meet strategic 5 years ambitions with an update 
sought  on the following:- 
 

  the monitoring and reporting structure of the five year land supply position, 
and the current position following the recent ruling on the Pennsylvania 
Road appeal, and    

  in respect of the Spruce Close appeal, who had made a judgment on the 
supply following the evidence that the Council was required to give and 
whether the Council could potentially examine how it gathered evidence to 

Page 6



make sure it was as robust as possible to meet the threshold of clear 
evidence.  

 
The Member who had raised the amendment to Minute 19 relating to Risk 3 and 
references to Net Zero 2030 also sought a further response to her enquiry. 
 
The Audit and Governance Committee reviewed and noted the updated Corporate 
Risk Register and would invite the Director Finance to the next meeting to provide 
further details of Risk 4 Maintaining the financial sustainability of the Council and 
Risk 5 Increased costs of all capital building projects, with a further invitation to the 
Director of Development to present detail of Risk 2 Failure to meet Exeter’s Housing 
supply needs in March.  
 
 

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 6.50 pm) 
 

Chair

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Commercial in confidence

 

 

P
age 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 11



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 12



Commercial in confidence

•

• •

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 13



Commercial in confidence

•
•

•

•

P
age 14



Commercial in confidence

P
age 15



Commercial in confidence

P
age 16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 17



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18



Commercial in confidence

P
age 19



Commercial in confidence

P
age 20



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 21



Commercial in confidence

P
age 22



Commercial in confidence

P
age 23



Commercial in confidence

P
age 24



Commercial in confidence

P
age 25



Commercial in confidence

P
age 26



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27



Commercial in confidence

P
age 28



Commercial in confidence

P
age 29



Commercial in confidence

P
age 30



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 31



Commercial in confidence

P
age 32



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33



Commercial in confidence

P
age 34



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 35



Commercial in confidence

P
age 36



Commercial in confidence

P
age 37



Commercial in confidence

P
age 38



Commercial in confidence

P
age 39



Commercial in confidence

P
age 40



Commercial in confidence

P
age 41



Commercial in confidence

P
age 42



Commercial in confidence

P
age 43



Commercial in confidence

P
age 44



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 45



Commercial in confidence

P
age 46



Commercial in confidence

P
age 47



Commercial in confidence

P
age 48



Commercial in confidence

P
age 49



Commercial in confidence

P
age 50



Commercial in confidence

P
age 51



Commercial in confidence

P
age 52



Commercial in confidence

P
age 53



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 54



P
age 55



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 56



Commercial in confidence

P
age 57



Commercial in confidence

P
age 58



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 59



P
age 60



REPORT TO AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 
Date of Meeting: 30th NOVEMBER 2022 
Report of: AUDIT MANAGERS 
Title: INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2nd QUARTER 1st JULY TO 30th 
SEPTEMBER 2022 
 
Is this a Key Decision? 
No 
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
COUNCIL 
 
1. What is the report about? 
 

1.1 To report on internal audit work carried out during the period 1st July to 30th 
September 2022, to advise on overall progress against the Audit Plan and to report any 
emerging issues requiring consideration. 

 
2. Recommendations: 
 

2.1 That the Internal Audit Progress Report for the second quarter of the year 2022/23 be 
noted. 

 
3. Reasons for the recommendation:   
 
 3.1 One of the roles of this committee is to review quarterly internal audit reports and the 

main issues arising and seek assurance from management that action has been taken, 
where necessary. 

 
4. What are the resource implications including non-financial resources: 
 
 4.1   None 
   
5. Section 151 Officer Comments: 
  
 5.1 Much of the report is positive, however, the weaknesses in the debtors system 

require addressing as the Council needs to ensure that all income due is raised and 
received.  It is important to ensure that this is monitored and rectified going forwards. 

 
6. What are the legal aspects? 
  
 6.1 None identified. 
  
7.  Monitoring Officer Comments: 

 
7.1  It is gratifying to note tht the majoiry of the areas audited have been assessed as 
“satisfactory assurance”. Having said that, there is always room for improvement. 

 
8. Report details: 
 

This Committee is responsible for the implementation and active monitoring of audit 
processes and actions, which includes performance against the annual audit plan, 
reviewing quarterly internal audit progress reports and seeking responses and 
assurance from management where remedial action has not been agreed or 

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



 
implemented within a reasonable timescale.  The 2022/23 Audit Plan was approved 
at this Committee on 9th March 2022. 

 
 

 The purpose of internal audit is to provide an independent, objective assurance and 
consulting service designed to add value and improve the Council’s operations. The 
mission of internal audit is to enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-
based and objective assurance, advice, and insight. The internal audit Service helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk management, and control 
processes.  Each of the activities we audit are given an assurance rating as follows: 

 
Substantial Assurance There is a sound system of internal control designed and 

operating in a way that gives a reasonable likelihood that 
the objectives will be met 
 

Satisfactory Assurance Whilst there is a basically sound system of internal 
control there are weaknesses which put some of the 
objectives at risk or there is evidence that the level of 
non-compliance with some of the controls may put some 
of the objectives at risk 
 

Limited Assurance Weaknesses in the system of internal controls are such 
as to put the objectives at risk or the level of non-
compliance puts the objectives at risk.  
 

No assurance Control is generally weak leaving the system open to 
error or abuse or significant non-compliance with basic 
control processes leaves the processes/systems open 
to error or abuse  
 

 
 
 8.1  Work Undertaken  
   
  Internal Audit’s objective is to examine the Council’s financial and non-financial 

systems to check that there are adequate internal controls in place to prevent loss 
due to frauds, errors and inefficiency, and due attention is paid to corporate 
governance and risk management.  

   
 A summary of progress against the annual audit plan to date is shown at Appendix A, 

together with the current status of each area for review and the outcomes of the 
review, where completed. 

 
I am pleased to report that all of the agreed actions from previous audit reports are 
being progressed satisfactorily.  

 
 Progress against the annual audit plan is on target.  

 
8.2 Progress report on ‘high’ risk issues and remedial action agreed 

 
 Progress of the high risk issue identified during the first quarter of 2022-23: 
 
  

Page 62



 
Building Greater Exeter Partnership 
  

Issue identified Remedial Action agreed Target 
Date 

Notes on progress 

The Terms of Reference does 
not specify the arrangements 
for allocating the assets and 
liabilities in the event of the 
termination of the partnership. 

The Skills & City Inclusivity 
Manager will arrange for a 
termination ‘clause’ to be included 
in the ToR.   

30.09.22 October 2022 
 
The Terms of Reference 
have been updated to 
include the allocation of 
assets and liabilities in 
the event of the 
termination of the 
partnership. 

 
  
 During the second quarter of 2022-23, two ‘high’ risk issues were identified and 

remedial action agreed as follows:  
 
 Sundry Debtors 
 

Issue identified Remedial Action agreed Target 
Date 

Notes on progress 

Allotments 
 
182 anomalies were identified 
relating to the collection of 
income from allotments, where 
plots are shown as live but 
invoices have either not been 
raised or not raised for some 
time. 
 
 
 

 
The Commercial Services Support 
Manager is currently investigating 
the anomalies.  All actions/updates 
arising from this are being 
recorded and will be actioned i.e. 
invoices raised, spreadsheet 
updated, ASH periodic customer 
accounts corrected, by the team 
 

 
Oct 
2022 

 
 

Visit Exeter 
 
Income relating to Visit Exeter 
membership fees, business 
support, screen adverts etc. is 
collected via sundry debtor 
invoices.  A review of the Visit 
Exeter database and the 
sundry debtors system 
identified 3 instances where 
the database recorded that 
invoices had been raised but 
there was no evidence of the 
invoice in the sundry debtors 
system. 
 

 
 
Relevant invoices have now been 
raised. 
 
Consideration is being given to 
raising membership invoices via 
the periodic system to ensure they 
are always raised annually. 

 
 
 
 
 
March 
2023 

 
 
No further action 
required. 
 
To follow-up next year. 

 
8.3 Amendment to Audit Plan 

 
  The annual audit plan included time for a review of the governance arrangements of 

Exeter City Living, however, following a recommendation by the Council’s External 
Auditors, Grant Thornton an external independent review has been commissioned.  
Therefore, to avoid duplication assurance will be sought from this piece of work. 

 
 
 
 

Page 63



 
8.4 Governance Issues 

 
The Council’s annual governance statement (AGS) includes some significant 
governance issues and an action plan has been compiled which will be subject to 
regular monitoring by the Audit and Governance Committee. 
 
The action plan of the issues identified has been included in Appendix B. 
 

9.  How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
 

9.1  Good governance contributes to the Council’s purpose of a “Well Run Council”. 
 

10.  What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
 
N/A 
 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  
 

11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equality Duty, decision makers are required to 
consider the need to: 

 
  eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 

conduct; 
  advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 
  foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 
 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 
equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do not prevent the authority 
from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that 
consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

 
11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 
decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 
and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 
new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a 
decision. 

 
11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people with 
protected characteristics as determined by the Act because: because 

   
  11.4.1 The report is for information only  
  
12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental Impactions)  
 
 12.1 No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 
 
 
13. Are there any other options? 
 
 13.1 N/A 
 

Page 64



 
 
 
  
Helen Kelvey/Helen Putt 
Audit Manager 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report: 
None 
 
Contact for enquiries: 
Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3 
01392 265115 
 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
EXETER CITY COUNCIL 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

PROGRESS OF 2022-23 AUDIT PLAN TO DATE 
 

Please note that this is a summary of remedial action agreed, as to include all actions agreed from each audit report in detail would result in a lengthy document.  
Members may request a full copy of any report once finalised or alternatively meet with the Audit Manager to discuss specific audits further. 
 

Audit Review Report 
Status Overall Opinion 

Direction of 
travel since 

last audit 

No. of Findings & 
Remedial Action 

Agreed (High Risk only)  
Summary (where completed within this quarter) 

IT/STRATA In progress     

Main Accounting In 
progress     

Income Management      

Procurement      

Creditors 
    

 

People Management      

Elections & Electoral 
Registration Final Substantial 

Assurance 
No previous 

rating 0 No matters arising 

Private Sector Landlord 
Services      

Better Care Fund Grant 
(DFG & Warm Up 
Grants) 

Final Substantial 
Assurance 

 2 Medium 
2 Low 

Reported Q1 

Waste and Recycling Final Substantial 
Assurance   

1 medium 
3 Low 

Garden waste collection is a chargeable service for registered 
customers, which any household within the Exeter boundary can 
apply for.  The Council does not collect from allotments or other 
non-residential properties.  Garden waste is only accepted in 
one of the special brown bins (supplied by the Council) or in a 
bio-degradable sack, which can be purchased by the 
householder. 
 
The scope of the audit was to; 
  review and update where necessary the system description 
  obtain assurance that payments for this service are being 

collected in full and processed correctly 
 

P
age 67



Audit Review Report 
Status Overall Opinion 

Direction of 
travel since 

last audit 

No. of Findings & 
Remedial Action 

Agreed (High Risk only)  
Summary (where completed within this quarter) 

There was one medium and three low risk findings.  Remedial 
action has been agreed for all findings.  
 

Building Greater Exeter 
(BGE) 

Final Satisfactory 
Assurance 

No previous 
audit 

1 High 
3 Medium 

2 Low 

Reported Q1 

Climate Change/Net 
Zero Exeter 

In 
progress     

Commercialisation and 
Project Management      

Sport England In 
progress     

Communications – 
Social Media Final Satisfactory 

Assurance 
No previous 

rating 
9 Medium 

3 Low 

Social media is any digital technology that allows users to 
instantly generate and share information with the public.  It’s a 
great way of connecting, engaging and communicating with a 
large and wider audience, equally it can be daunting, hostile and 
full of legal pitfalls which can damage reputations and be costly 
and time-consuming. 
 
The Communication Team is responsible for setting up social 
media accounts for service areas and training their staff in the 
use of social media.  Alongside the training, all staff are issued 
with the social media guidance document. 
 
The scope included; 
  Reviewing the social media guidance document 
  Ensuring that the councils social media account users are 

aware of their responsibilities 
  Checking that passwords are changed regularly 
  Reviewing posts to the councils’ social media accounts to 

check they are delivered to a high standard 
 
There were nine medium and three low risk findings.  Remedial 
action was agreed for all findings. 
 

Leisure Facilities In 
progress    

 

Housing Benefit Subsidy- 
claims from state pension 
age claimants not in receipt 
of pension credit 

Final Satisfactory 
Assurance 

No previous 
rating on this 

aspect 

1 Medium 
1 Low 

The DWP pays authorities subsidy equal to their ‘qualifying 
expenditure’ on housing benefit.  Correctly paid HB qualifies for 
100% subsidy, however, to encourage authorities to monitor and 
control costs, certain areas of benefit expenditure are penalised.  
These include certain overpayments and certain high eligible 
rents.  Authorities can also fail to receive subsidy if they cannot 

P
age 68



Audit Review Report 
Status Overall Opinion 

Direction of 
travel since 

last audit 

No. of Findings & 
Remedial Action 

Agreed (High Risk only)  
Summary (where completed within this quarter) 

provide the necessary information and evidence to support their 
claims.   
The group of pension age claimants have a high potential for 
error in the income/capital/household details, however, these 
cases are not reliably picked up the DWP HB award accuracy 
programme, so are not regularly reviewed.  A request was made 
to Internal Audit to carry out a review of these cases to identify if 
there is a prevalence of inaccurate claims in this section of the 
caseload and whether these inaccuracies are purely 
administrative or add up to incorrect awards.  The results of this 
audit will inform the assessors whether a more significant review 
of these cases needs to be undertaken by Housing Benefits. 
 
As a result of this audit, in future more of these types of claims 
will be selected for review from the list the DWP provides for 
accuracy checking.  Normally the checking process would 
concentrate on cases highlighted as high risk by the DWP.  
However, there is now justification in checking samples of 
pension age claims which are likely to have been classified as a 
lower risk on the list by the DWP. 
 
There was one medium risk and one low risk finding.  Remedial 
action has been agreed for both findings. 
 

Council Tax      

Sundry Debtors Draft 
Report 

Income Collection 
Team 

Substantial 
 

Service Areas 
 Limited Assurance 

No previous 
rating to 
compare 

2 High 
9 Medium 

8 Low 

Sundry Debtors is the system for collection of income due to the 
Council.   
 
The scope of the audit was to; 

  check that the sundry debtor policies and procedures 
are up to date and readily available to users 

  review the raising of sundry debtor invoices  
  select a sample of 10 outstanding invoices to check 

that suitable recovery action has been undertaken 
  ensure that the cancellation of invoices and write-off of 

outstanding debt is undertaken in accordance with 
Financial Regulations 

establish that Members are provided with relevant sundry debtor 
information on a regular basis 
 
The audit identified two high risk, nine medium risk and two low 
risk findings.   
 

P
age 69



Audit Review Report 
Status Overall Opinion 

Direction of 
travel since 

last audit 

No. of Findings & 
Remedial Action 

Agreed (High Risk only)  
Summary (where completed within this quarter) 

Remedial action has been agreed for all findings.  The details of 
the high risk findings are included in the main body of the report. 
 
A summary of the key issues identified in the audit were that; In 
line with the One Exeter Programme progress is being made to 
identify and set up new streams of income, however, the ‘back 
office’ processes/resource to support both the raising of invoices 
and subsequent collection of the debt for all income streams 
(both old and new) require attention – the audit has identified 
examples where; 
  Services are being provided yet invoices are not being 

raised 
  Invoices are not being raised promptly after the supply of 

the service 
  Service Areas are not always undertaking debt recovery at 

all and/or in a prompt manner 
In such instances the council will be incurring costs rather than 
generating an income 
 

Health & Safety      

Equalities and Diversity      

Risk Management In 
progress     

Business Continuity      

Contract Management In 
progress     

External Grants/Funding 
received      

Safeguarding      

Performance 
Management      

Exeter City Living Deferred    See Nov 22 Internal Audit progress report. 

Covid related work/Post 
assurance: 
 
Omicron 
 

 
 
 

Final 
 

 
 
 

Substantial 
Assurance 

 
 
 
 

N/A 
 

 
 
 
 
1 Medium 
 

Reported Q1 

P
age 70



Audit Review Report 
Status Overall Opinion 

Direction of 
travel since 

last audit 

No. of Findings & 
Remedial Action 

Agreed (High Risk only)  
Summary (where completed within this quarter) 

Test & Trace Support Final Substantial 
Assurance 

N/A No matters arising 

Review of 
Hospitality/Disclosures     

 

 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
PROGRESS REPORT ON SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES IDENTIFIED IN THE ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021-22

AGS
Issue
No. Issue identified

Responsible
Officer Summary of action proposed Update Sept 2022 Update November 2022 Update March 2023

Notes

1 Financial position – The Government’s continued delays in
Implementing the Fair Funding Review and business rates
reset implementing the Fair funding review and business
Rates reset have led to further uncertainty over the Medium
term Financial Plan. However, the financial position remains
precarious with significant reductions required to balance
the budget over the medium term. The impact of the pay
award and high inflation mean the Council need to reduce
spend by £6.6m over the life of the MTFP regardless of the
Governments plans.  There is an immediate requirement to
reduce expenditure by £2.3m in time for the 2023-24
budget.

Director
Finance

One Exeter plan is operational and being progressed.
Specific reduction targets have been set for each year of
the plan. This is being monitored monthly by SMB. Clear
programmes of work are in place and are being actioned.

The MTFP has been updated in light of the
offered pay award and projections relating to fuel,
energy and other inflationary increases.  This has
locked in the requirement for delivering £6.6m of
savings over the life of the MTFP.  However, work
has progressed with the One Exeter
Transformation programme to ensure that a
balanced budget can be delivered.

Further information on the impact of
the energy cost increases have
raised the amount required to
around £3.4m for 2023-24.  Further
work has been undertaken to either
bring forward elements of the One
Exeter programme or identify new
options to cover the additional costs.

2 Net Zero 2030 – the Council has set a net zero target date
of 2030 for council operations as opposed to the Devon
County Council and central government target of 2050. In
setting this central government target, the Committee on
Climate Change (CCC) recognised that whilst this target is
technically feasible it is highly challenging without sustained
policy interventions across several sectors, many of which
will be complex, costly and time-consuming. In choosing to
set a target 20 years ahead
of national and other locally set targets is high risk.
However, this has already been recognised and will be
monitored by the Audit & Governance Committee as part of
the corporate risk register process.

Director Net-
Zero

To be monitored as part of the Coriporate Risk Register
monitoring process.

3 Change Management – the current scale and pace of
change due to a number of factors presents a risk to
achieving objectives and may impact the extent to which the
organisation is capable of maintaining acceptable levels of
compliance amid the shake-up of operations and control
systems. These factors include the following:
• external factors e.g. regulatory change and    compliance,
climate change
• internal factors e.g. The One Exeter project to deliver the
digitalization/transformation of service delivery

Audit
Managers

The Audit Managers have been involved in a number of
the One Exeter work streams, including the service review
process and production of the ‘How to’ guidance for
service leads. Involvement at this early stage should help
identify risks to the internal control environment that could
arise due to any changes being brought about by the
program and this work will continue as the project
develops.

Internal Audit have also been asked to input into the
development of service plans advising on governance and
risk assessment processes.

No further updates at this stage. Internal Audit continues to assist as
needed.

P
age 73



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date of Meeting: 30TH NOVEMBER 2022 

Report of: AUDIT MANAGER 

Title: COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY APPROVAL 

Is this a Key Decision?  
No 

Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
COUNCIL 

1. What is the report about? 
 1.1 This committee has responsibility for approval of the Council’s Counter Fraud 

Strategy which is reviewed biennially. 

2. Recommendations:  
 2.1 To approve the updated Counter Fraud Strategy at Appendix A. 

3. Reasons for the recommendation: 
 3.1 The Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy needs to be reviewed every two years to 

ensure that it is up to date and remains fit for purpose. 

4. What are the resource implications including non financial resources.
 4.1    None. 
5. Section 151 Officer comments: 
 5.1 There are no financial implications contained in this report.  However the strategy 

underpins the Council’s approach to fraud and therefore provides an important element of 
the overall financial framework. 

6. What are the legal aspects? 
 6.1  None identified. 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
7.1 This raises no issues for the Monitoring Officer. 

8. Report details 
 8.1 The Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy was reviewed in September 2021, however, 

there were no updates to the content of the strategy and so it was agreed that it would not 
be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee for approval, however, during the 
audit conducted by the Council’s External Auditor’s, Grant Thornton, it was recommended 
that the strategy should be presented to the Audit and Governance Committee even if 
there are no changes.  Therefore, the strategy was reviewed again in September 2022 and 

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



is now being presented to the Audit and Governance Committee for the biennial approval.   
There were no changes during the review. 

8.2 Once approved by this committee, the updated policy will be communicated to all 
staff and councillors via the Council’s policy management software. 

8.3 A copy of the updated policy is included at Appendix A. 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
9.1 Good governance contributes to the Council’s purpose of a “Well Run Council”. 

10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
10.1 N/A 

11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act)  
11.1 Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 
consider the need to: 

  eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 
conduct; 

  advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 
account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; and 

  foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 
understanding. 

11.2 In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 
equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do not prevent the authority 
from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that 
consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

11.3 In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 
decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 
and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 
new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a 
decision. 

11.4 In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people with 
protected characteristics as determined by the Act because: because 

 11.4.1 The report is for information only  

12. Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:   
12.1  No direct carbon/environmental impacts arising from the recommendations. 

13. Are there any other options? 
13.1  No 

DIRECTOR:  

Dave Hodgson 

Page 76



Director of Finance 

 

AUTHOR: 

Helen Putt 

Audit Manager 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 

None 

Contact for enquires:  

Democratic Services (Committees) 
Room 2.3 
01392 265275 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Counter Fraud Strategy 
 
Contents 
 

1.0  Introduction ...................................................................................................................................2 

2.0  Definitions ......................................................................................................................................2 

3.0  Key principles ...............................................................................................................................3 

4.0  Corporate framework ...................................................................................................................3 

5.0  Roles and responsibilities ...........................................................................................................4 

5.1  Management responsibilities ......................................................................................................4 

5.2  Employees’ responsibilities ..........................................................................................................4 

5.3  Councillors’ responsibilities .........................................................................................................4 

5.4 Role of the responsible officer ......................................................................................................4 

5.5  Role of internal audit ...................................................................................................................5 

5.6  Role of the external auditor .........................................................................................................5 

5.7  Culture .........................................................................................................................................5 

6.0  Prevention Strategy .........................................................................................................................6 

7.0  Detection Strategy ...........................................................................................................................7 

8.0  Fraud Response Plan ........................................................................................................................7 

9.0  Review .............................................................................................................................................7 

 

 

  

Page 79



1.0  Introduction 
 

1.1  Exeter City Council is committed to the prevention and detection of fraud, bribery and 
corruption. Any suspected cases of fraud, bribery or corruption will be investigated and wherever 
possible, the Council will refer the matter to the police in order that perpetrators can be prosecuted, 
and losses recovered through all appropriate means. 

1.2  Misuse of public funds deprives the Council of finance it needs to achieve its agreed goals and 
strategic objectives. As a consequence of lack of finance, citizens (particularly those in need) may be 
deprived of vital services. 

1.3  The purpose of this policy is to set out for councillors and employees, the Council’s key 
principles and approach to countering fraud, bribery and corruption. 

1.4  The table at the end of this document provides a simple reference of dos and don’ts should you 
suspect a fraud. 

2.0  Definitions 
 

2.1  Fraud 

Fraud is an intentional criminal activity which can include theft. Types of fraud that could affect the 
Council include obtaining assets or services by deception; forgery and false accounting intended to 
mislead or misrepresent, for example, providing false information when submitting a claim.  

The Fraud Act 2006 provides that people carrying out serious frauds can be imprisoned for up to 10 
years. Fraud includes: 

  taking something you are not entitled to (e.g. cash, supplies, even peoples’ identities) 
  false accounting 
  deception 
  forgery 

 

2.2  Bribery 

The Bribery Act 2010 defines bribery as “the inducement for an action which is illegal, unethical or a 
breach of trust. Inducements can take the form of gifts, loans, fees, rewards or other advantages 
whether monetary or otherwise” The Bribery Act 2010 came into force in July 2011. The Act forces 
organisations to evaluate how, and with whom, they do business and makes them accountable for 
ensuring that safeguards are in place to prevent bribery. 

2.3  Corruption 

Corruption is the abuse of entrusted power for private gain. It affects everyone who depends on the 
integrity of people in a position of authority. The Bribery Act 2010 repealed all Corruption Acts in 
whole and therefore there is now no offence of corruption; therefore whilst corruption exists as a 
term, it no longer exists as an offence.  However, Section 7 of the Act creates a new offence of 
failure by an organisation to prevent a bribe being paid for or on its behalf.   

Page 80



Should a bribery offence occur, senior officers of the Council could be held accountable if they have 
failed to put in place appropriate preventative measures within the organisation. 

3.0  Key principles 
 

3.1  Our commitment to eliminate fraud, bribery and corruption are summarised by the following 
principles:  

  Culture - create an anti-fraud, anti-corruption, anti-bribery and zero tolerance culture 
  Prevention - review existing, and check new, policies and systems to ensure that any 

apparent weaknesses are removed and fit-for-purpose 
  Detection - provide appropriate mechanisms for employees to voice their concerns and 

protect those who do make reports 
  Investigation - maintain formal procedures to investigate fraud or corruption whenever it is 

suspected 
  Sanctions - deal robustly with perpetrators of fraud or corruption, and to have no hesitation 

in referring cases to the police where it is appropriate to do so 
  Redress - use reasonable measures to seek redress to recover any monies defrauded 

 

4.0  Corporate framework 
 

4.1  Everyone has a role to play in the prevention and detection of fraud, bribery or corruption. We 
expect employees and elected members to lead by example. 

4.2  Our staff are our first line of defence against most acts of attempts of fraud, corruption or 
bribery. We expect and encourage them to be alert to the possibility of acts of fraud, corruption or 
bribery and to raise any such concerns at the earliest opportunity.  

4.3  Staff have a duty to protect the assets of the Council, including information, as well as property. 
When an employee suspects that there has been fraud or corruption, they must report the matter to 
their Manager and Internal Audit.  Roles and responsibilities are covered in more detail below. 

4.4  A key element of prevention is the range of interrelated policies and procedures the Council has 
in place that together seek to create a zero tolerance culture. These have been formulated in line 
with appropriate legislative requirements and include: 

  this Counter Fraud Strategy 
  the Fraud response plan 
  codes of conduct for councillors and employees 
  standing orders and financial regulations 
  procurement and contract procedures  
  accounting procedures and records 
  internal control systems 
  Internal Audit 
  recruitment and selection procedures 
  disciplinary procedures 
  anti-money laundering procedures 
  the Whistleblowing policy 

Page 81



  Regulation of Investigatory Powers (RIPA) procedures 
  Local Planning Code of Conduct 
  The Council’s Constitution 

5.0  Roles and responsibilities 
 

The corporate framework can only be effective in prevention or detection if the policies, procedures 
and arrangement are complied with, and there are clear lines of accountability and responsibility 
which are: 

5.1  Management responsibilities 
5.1.2  The day-to-day responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption rests 
with line managers who are responsible for: 

  identifying the risks to which systems, operations and procedures are exposed, including 
maintaining awareness of potential new and emerging fraud risks; 

  developing and maintaining effective controls to prevent and detect fraud; 
  ensuring that controls are being complied with 

 

5.1.3  Managers must ensure that all of their staff are aware of the Council’s counter fraud 
arrangements, as well as the Whistleblowing Policy. Managers must also encourage an environment 
in which their staff feel that they are able to approach them should they suspect irregularities are 
occurring. 

5.1.4  During the recruitment process, managers should ensure that, as far as possible, potential 
employees are appropriately screened and vetted to establish the integrity of potential employees, 
whether permanent, temporary or casual posts.  This should be done in consultation with Human 
Resources.  This is a key preventative measure against fraud and could include, for example, 
verifying qualifications, identity checks, eligibility to work in the UK, and for certain posts credit 
checks (e.g. for posts with financial responsibilities) or Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) checks 
(previously CRB checks) where appropriate 

5.2  Employees’ responsibilities 
5.2.1  All employees must: 

  act with propriety in the use of resources and in the handling and use of public funds, 
whether they are involved with cash or payment systems, receipts or dealing with 
contractors, suppliers or customers; 

  immediately report, without fear of recrimination, if they suspect or believe there is 
evidence of irregular or improper behaviour or that fraud may be being committed 

  comply with the employees’ code of conduct (available on the Intranet) 
 
5.3  Councillors’ responsibilities 
5.3.1  Councillors have a duty to the citizens of Exeter to protect Council assets from all forms of 
abuse. This is reflected by the adoption of this policy and compliance with the code of conduct for 
members, relevant legislation, policies and procedures 

Page 82



5.4 Role of the responsible officer 
5.4.1  Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations make 
the ‘responsible officer’ Director Finance responsible for ensuring the Council has adequate control 
systems and measures in place 

 

5.5  Role of internal audit 
5.5.1  The purpose of internal audit is to provide independent and objective assurance to the Council 
on risk management, control and governance, by evaluating their effectiveness in achieving the 
Council’s stated objectives.  This includes promoting an anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption 
culture within the Council to aid the prevention and detection of fraud. 

5.5.2  Responsibility for managing counter fraud has been assigned to Internal Audit.  This will 
include responsibility for horizon scanning for potential new and emerging risks and sharing 
information about this with managers, as appropriate. 

  fraud prevention controls and detection processes are assessed for effectiveness 
 

5.5.4  All suspected fraud or irregularities should be reported to Internal Audit, with the exception of 
benefit and tenancy fraud which will be investigated by the relevant service provider.  However, 
statistics relating to these types of fraud should be reported to Internal Audit on a periodic basis in 
order that Internal Audit can maintain a central record of all reported fraud 

5.6  Role of the external auditor 
5.6.1  The external auditor reviews the Council's arrangements for preventing and detecting fraud, 
bribery and corruption. Whilst external auditors do not have a specific preventative role, they are 
always alert to the possibility of fraud, bribery and corruption and will report any grounds for 
suspicion that comes to their attention. 

5.7  Culture 

  leadership 
 

5.5.3  Amongst the range of services provided it includes fraud and irregularity investigations in 
which: 

  specialist skills and knowledge will be provided to assist in an investigation, or lead where 
appropriate.  If necessary, the services of specialist fraud investigators will be employed to 
assist with investigations as needed; and 

5.7.1  We expect anyone and any organisation associated with Exeter City Council to act with 
integrity and operate high ethical values.  We operate a zero tolerance culture and expect 
councillors and employees to strictly comply with the Nolan Committee’s Seven Principles of Public 
Life: 

  selflessness 
  integrity 
  objectivity 
  accountability 
  openness 
  honesty 

Page 83



5.7.2  The councillors and the employees’ codes of conduct define the Council’s expectations, and 
state what behaviour is deemed acceptable and what is unacceptable. The codes are published on 
the Council’s website and are readily accessible 

5.7.3  We will not tolerate bribery. It is unacceptable to:  

  Give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality with the expectation or hope 
that a business advantage will be received, or to reward a business advantage already given  

  Give, promise to give, or offer a payment, gift or hospitality to a government official, agent 
or representative to “facilitate” or expedite a routine procedure  

  Accept payment from a third party that you know or suspect is offered with the expectation 
that it will obtain a business advantage for them  

  Accept a gift or hospitality from a third party if you know or suspect that it is offered or 
provided with an expectation that a business advantage will be provided by us in return 

  Engage in activity in breach of this policy.  
 

5.7.4  All staff must adhere to section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 and our Constitution, 
which says that they must tell us about any interests they have in any contracts relating to our 
affairs, similarly they must disclose any close personal relationships with both colleagues and 
external contractors (refer to the Code of Conduct for guidance). Staff must tell us about any fees or 
rewards that they are offered in their official capacity, other than their normal salary. In any event, 
fees or rewards should not be accepted without first ensuring compliance with the Code of Conduct 
for Council employees 

5.7.5  Councillors are reminded of their responsibilities with details included in the Councillor’s Code 
of Conduct. The details include rules on declaring and registering any possible areas of conflict 
between an elected councillor’s Council duties and responsibilities and any other area of their 
personal or professional life. 

5.7.6  Those working and serving in the public sector hold a position of trust and so are expected to 
act with the upmost honesty and integrity.  Public servants that commit fraud, corruption or bribery 
can expect Courts to apply maximum penalties and sentences for breaking that public trust 

5.7.7  Counter fraud training is delivered via an e-learning module, and provided to all councillors 
and employees. New councillors and employees must undertake the training as part of their 
induction training process, during which they are made aware of the Council’s culture and of the 
policies and procedures they must comply with. This training ensures councillors and employees are 
aware of the different types of fraud and of the sanctions that can be taken against wrong-doers. 

  Retaliate against or threaten a person who has refused to commit a bribery offence or who 
has raised concerns under this policy 

Page 84



6.0  Prevention Strategy 

  Internal controls such as separation of duties and authorisation of financial transactions 
 

  horizon scan for emerging and latest fraud threats using publications and information issued 
by Government and other relevant bodies (e.g. CIFAS newsletter) and Internal  

  test internal controls are in place and working effectively. Where actual or potential 
weaknesses are identified, recommendations are made to enhance the effectiveness and 
robustness of controls 

7.0  Detection Strategy 

  maintaining a Whistleblowing Policy and procedures (that are published on the Council’s 
website) to encourage employees to report concerns about malpractice 

6.1  Prevention is the best and most efficient way to tackle fraud, bribery and corruption, and 
prevent losses to the Council, therefore, we have established robust systems of internal controls 
that are designed to prevent and detect fraud, bribery and corruption, examples of these include: 

  cross-checking data and information provided by applicants with that held on other systems 
to check that the information agrees and is accurate 

  baseline checking of job applicants in order to combat identity fraud and false claims. These 
measures include checking: proofs of identity; employment history; educational and 
professional qualifications, experience, etc. 

  active participation in the National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise that crosschecks 
data held by the Council with data held by other local and public authorities, Government 
departments and other organisations. Where suspect data is found, the cases are thoroughly 
investigated, and appropriate action taken or sanctions imposed. 

6.2  Internal Audit will: 

  risk assess fraud risks using the Internal Audit risk assessment method used to establish the 
annual audit plan; 

Audit will report those emerging threats to relevant managers and work with them to 
develop plans to address and tackle those threats; 

  ensure internal audit staff attend relevant training and seminars to keep up to date with the 
latest fraud trends and emerging risks; 

  as appropriate and in consultation with management, publicise proven frauds to raise 
awareness of fraud risks to help identification of fraud; 

  keep an up to date Fraud Response Plan and Collection of evidence policy giving guidance on 
conducting an investigation 

  provide reminders to employees to raise awareness of: 
o the Council’s policies, procedures and rules; 
o the fact that they must report any suspicions of fraud, bribery and corruption they 

may have 

7.1  We provide appropriate mechanisms to detect fraud, bribery and corruption, and to enable 
employees and members of the public to voice their concerns, these include: 

  Internal Auditors assessing the effectiveness and robustness of systems’ internal controls by, 
for example, checking transactions are valid 

  providing fraud reporting mechanisms, such as on-line reporting or dedicated fraud 
reporting phone number, to encourage the reporting of benefits and other types of frauds. 

Page 85



8.0  Fraud Response Plan 
8.1  We have established a Fraud Response Plan to compliment this strategy which lays out, in more 
detail, how we will respond to suspected fraud including investigations, sanctions and redress.  

9.0  Review 
9.1  This policy will be reviewed by Internal Audit, in consultation with other relevant persons, and 
approved by the Audit and Governance Committee, at least biennially. 

Last reviewed: September 2022

Page 86

file:///S:/CS/Audit/Counter%20Fraud/Counter%20Fraud%20Strategy%20&%20Fraud%20Response%20Plan/ECC%20Fraud%20Response%20Plan.docx


 

1 

REPORT TO AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date of Meeting: 30th November 2022 
Report of: Corporate Manager (Executive Support) 
Title: Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Review of Complaints 2021-22 
 
Is this a Key Decision?  
 
No 
 
Is this an Executive or Council Function? 
 
No 
 
1. What is the report about? 
 

1.1. The report explains the role of the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman 
(LGO) in investigating and remedying complaints about councils. It also presents the LGO’s 
annual review of complaints about Exeter City Council for the year ending 31 March 2022. 

 
1.2. Complaints relating to Housing Services that escalate to the Ombudsman are 
investigated by the Housing Ombudsman Service (HOS). Whilst these complaints are not 
part of the LGO legal duty to communicate with elected members, they have been included 
in Annex A to inform members of all ombudsman cases.     

 
2. Recommendations: 

 
2.1. That members note the report and highlight any issues with the complaints referred to 
in the LGO’s annual review. 

 
3. Reasons for the recommendation: 

 
3.1. There is a legal duty to communicate to elected members the council’s performance in 
relation to LGO investigations. 

 
4. What are the resource implications including non-financial resources. 

 
4.1. There are no resource implications. 

   
5. Section 151 Officer comments: 

 
5.1. There are no significant financial implications arising out of the report. 

 
6. What are the legal aspects? 

6.1. There is a duty under section 5(2) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 for 
the council to prepare a formal report to the council (Audit and Governance Committee) on 
all Ombudsman complaint decisions.  

 
6.2. The LGO considers that this duty is satisfactorily discharged if the Monitoring Officer 
makes a periodic report to the council summarising the findings on all upheld complaints over 
a specific period. This may be adequately addressed through an annual report on complaints 
to members, hence this report. 

 
6.3. On rare occasions, the LGO can also issue a ‘Formal Public Report’ if a local authority, 
or any part of it: 

 
  has acted or is likely to act in such a manner as to constitute maladministration or 

service failure perhaps because of the scale of the fault or injustice, or the number of 
people affected 

Page 87

Agenda Item 9



 

2 

  and where the LGO has conducted an investigation in relation to the matter 
 

6.4. Under the provisions of The Local Government Act 1974, whenever the LGO issues a 
Formal Public Report the council is obliged to lay that report before the council for 
consideration and respond within three months setting out the action taken, or proposed to 
be taken, in response to the report.  The LGO has not issued any Formal Public Reports in 
relation to Exeter City Council. 

 
6.5. In the unlikely event that an authority is minded not to comply with the LGO’s 
recommendations following a finding of maladministration, he would always expect the 
Monitoring Officer to report this to members under section five of the Act. This is an 
exceptional and unusual course of action for any authority to take and should be considered 
at the highest tier of the authority. 

 
 

7. Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
 

7.1. This report satisfies the obligation on the Monitoring Officers to report to members all 
ombudsmen’s decisions as described in paragraph 6 above.  

 
8. Report details: 
 

8.1. The LGO investigates complaints from the public about councils and some other 
bodies providing public services in England. The LGO investigates alleged or apparent 
maladministration or service failure that have caused injustice to the complainant. Most 
council services can be investigated including planning, council tax and housing benefit and 
some areas of housing. Maladministration in broad terms might include: 

 
  flaws in policies or decision making 
  poor administrative practice 
  failure to adhere to or consider properly statutory guidelines 
  failing to consider properly the exceptional circumstances of an individual or a 

situation 
  not properly considering statutory powers or duties 
  failing to give an adequate service 

 
8.2. The LGO will usually only become involved after a council's complaints procedure has 
been exhausted. If the LGO finds the council acted with fault, which caused the person an 
injustice, it will recommend a remedy to put things right. The LGO’s remedies are aimed at 
putting the person back in the position they would have been were it not for the fault. Where 
appropriate it also recommends action to avoid similar issues affecting other people - such 
as reviewing practice and procedure - and can recommend remedies for other persons 
affected by faults found in an individual complaint 

 
8.3. Details of the complaints received by the LGO about Exeter City Council, and the 
decisions made by the LGO on those complaints, for the year ending 31st March 2022 are set 
out Annex A. Members will note that: 

 
  The Ombudsman received, and made decisions on 12 cases 
  7 of those cases were closed after initial enquiries, 2 were not upheld, advice 

was given to the complainant in 2 and 1 was referred back to the council for 
resolution 

  The ombudsman did not propose a remedy or recommend service improvements 
for any cases 
 

 
 

Page 88



 

3 

9. How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
 

9.1. Effective handling of complaints and following due process are facets of a well-run 
council. 

 
10. What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 

 
10.1. No risks identified. 

 
11. Equality Act 2010 (The Act) 

 
11.1   Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 
consider the need to: 

 
  eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 

conduct; 
  advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking account 

of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; 
  and foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 
 

11.2   In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 
equality of decisions, policies and practices. These duties do not prevent the authority from 
reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that 
consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

 
11.3  In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 
decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 
and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and 
new and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a 
decision. 

 
11.4   In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people with 
protected characteristics as determined by the Act because: 

 
11.4.1 The report does not set policy and there is no negative impact. 
 

12.      Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 
 

12.1   Not applicable 
 

13.      Are there any other options? 
 

13.1  Not applicable. 
 
 
Bruce Luxton 
Corporate Manager (Executive Support) 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 
 
None 

Page 89



 

4 

ANNEX A 
Summary of complaint statistics from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

and the Housing Ombudsman Service for the year ending 31 March 2022 
 
 

Reference Category Decided Decision Decision Reason Remedy Service 
improvement 

recommendations 
21005063 Planning & Development 06/09/2021 Closed after initial enquiries Other reason not to investigate None None 

20013187 Housing Needs 25/05/2021 Closed after initial enquiries No worthwhile outcome 
achievable by investigation 

None None 

21003249 Environmental Services & 
Public Protection & Regulation 

15/12/2021 Not Upheld No maladministration found None None 

21003653 Housing Needs 14/06/2021 Advice given Signpost to the council’s 
complaints process 

None None 

21006831 Environmental Services & 
Public Protection & Regulation 

03/02/2022 Closed after initial enquiries Not warranted by alleged 
maladministration/service failure 

None None 

21011035 Planning & Development 06/12/2021 Closed after initial enquiries 26B(2) not made in 12 months 
(out of time) 

None None 

21011483 Housing Needs 02/03/2022 Not Upheld No worthwhile outcome 
achievable by further investigation 

None None 

21011677 Planning & Development 04/01/2022 Closed after initial enquiries Not warranted by alleged injustice None None 
21011845 Planning & Development 10/11/2021 Referred back for local 

resolution 
Premature decision - advice given None None 

21013707 Corporate & Other Services 19/01/2022 Advice given Previously considered and 
decided 

None None 

21016833 Environmental Services & 
Public Protection & Regulation 

18/02/2022 Closed after initial enquiries Not warranted by alleged 
maladministration/service failure 

None None 

21018040 Corporate & Other Services 22/03/2022 Closed after initial enquiries Other reason not to investigate None None 
202103088 Housing Services  19/12/2021 Recommendation to deliver 

rejected resolution from 
Stage Two Investigation  

No maladministration handling 
complainant request  
Complaint resolved satisfactorily 
 

Good will 
gesture 
offered  

None 

202005117 Housing Services 10/02/2021 Review process No maladministration of work None None 

P
age 90



 

5 

Reference Category Decided Decision Decision Reason Remedy Service 
improvement 

recommendations 
completed or complaint handling 

202201594 Housing Services 12/09/2022 Closed after initial enquiries Not within jurisdiction (timescale) None None 
202107316 Housing Services 03/12/2022 Advising resident to log 

complaint initially 
Complaints process not used  None None 

202126322 Housing Services 02/03/2022 Advising resident to log 
complaint initially 

Complaints process not used  None None 

202008830 Housing Services 11/06/2021 No maladministration of 
complaint handling  
Service failure – advice 
given to resident 

Compensation order - £75.00 £75.00 None 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



REPORT TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date of Meeting:  30th NOVEMBER 2022 
Report of: Chief Executive & Growth Director 
Title: Corporate Risk Register 

 
Is this a Key Decision? 

 
No 

 
Is this an Executive or council function? 

 
Risk management is a council function. 

 
Risk Management is an important element of the council’s Code of Corporate Governance. 
Regular monitoring of the council’s corporate risks helps to ensure that the council’s 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 

 
1.       What is the report about? 
 

1.1    The report advises the committee of the council’s risk management progress and 
presents the updated Corporate Risk Register (Appendix A). 

 
2.       Recommendations: 
 

2.1    That the committee reviews and notes Corporate Risk Register 
 
3.       Reasons for the recommendation: 
 

3.1 To comply with the council’s Risk Management Policy which states that this 
committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing the Council’s risks and reporting all 
new and updated risks to the Chief Executive and Growth Director. 

 
4.       What are the resource implications including non-financial resources. 
 

4.1    Directors and Senior Managers, as appropriate, are asked to update the Corporate Risk 
Register on a quarterly basis. The register is reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive and 
Growth Director, the Strategic Management Board and the Health and Safety Board. This 
process is currently facilitated by Internal Audit. 

 
5.       Section 151 Officer comments: 
 

5.1    The Strategic Management Board is working with Zurich to undertake a 
review of the Corporate Risk Register.  The initial meeting has taken place and it 
is hoped that the refreshed risk register will be presented to the March Committee.  The 
financial risk has been updated to reflect the impact of higher energy costs. 

 
6.       What are the legal aspects? 
 

6.1   None identified. 
 

7.       Monitoring Officer’s comments: 
 

7.1    Nothing to add to the S.151 officer’s comment as set out above. 
 
 
 
 Page 93

Agenda Item 10



8.       Report details: 
 
8.1 The Corporate Risk Register (Appendix A) has been reviewed and updated by 
members of SMB as follows:  
 
8.2 Risk 1  The details of the risk and mitigations have been updated to reflect the current 
position. 
  
8.3 An update on each risk can be found in the notes column of the Corporate Risk 
Register (Appendix A) 

 
9.       How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan? 
 

9.1    This decision helps to ensure the delivery of the council’s purpose ‘Well Run Council’. 
 
10.      What risks are there and how can they be reduced? 
 
10.1   Any risks should be captured in either this document or the operational risk register. 

 
11.      Equality Act 2010 (The Act) 
 

11.1   Under the Act’s Public Sector Equalities Duty, decision makers are required to 
consider the need to: 

 
  eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited 

conduct; 
  advance equality by encouraging participation, removing disadvantage, taking 

account of disabilities and meeting people’s needs; 
  and foster good relations between people by tackling prejudice and promoting 

understanding. 
 

11.2    In order to comply with the general duty authorities must assess the impact on 
equality of decisions, policies and practices. These duties do not prevent the authority from 
reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that 
consider the impacts on all members of the community. 

 
11.3    In making decisions the authority must take into account the potential impact of that 
decision in relation to age, disability, race/ethnicity (includes Gypsies and Travellers), sex 
and gender, gender identity, religion and belief, sexual orientation, pregnant women and new 
and breastfeeding mothers, marriage and civil partnership status in coming to a decision. 

 
11.4    In recommending this proposal no potential impact has been identified on people with 
protected characteristics as determined by the Act because: 

 
11.4.1 The report does not set policy. 

 
12.      Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications: 
 
12.1   Not applicable 

 
13.      Are there any other options? 
 
13.1   Not applicable. 

 
 
Chief Executive and Growth Director 

 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended) 
Background papers used in compiling this report:- 
Contact for enquires: Democratic Services (Committees)01392 265275Page 94



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

1

08.11.19 Executive 

Updates to be 

provided by 

Karime Hassan

Chief Executive 

& Growth 

Director

4 3 12 Ideally there would be an alignment of the national and county goals for net 

zero emissions. Regrettably Devon County have now committed to a net 

zero 2050 goal in line with the national goal. This is a significant blow to the 

ambitions of the city to deliver on the more challenging 2030 goal. Given 

the significance of transport to the goal of net zero emissions it has made it 

highly unlikely that the city can achieve an ambitious timetable for that 

sector. 

In the absence of policy alignment it could be appropriate that the city and 

its partners reflect on the role the city plays in terms of the agenda. For 

example the city council continue to innovate and show willingness to pilot 

initiates and create a powerful narrative around pioneering initiatives 

accepting that getting to scale is another challenge altogether.  

The other consideration is whether the city begins to focus on adaption 

rather than prevention. Climate adaption rather than eliminating 

greenhouse gas emissions will become a topic for discussion in months to 

come. The national and international debate is possibly moving backwards 

and whilst not an immediate issue for discussion, as time moves on a lack 

of a clear route to delivery will inevitably suggest adaption becomes the 

issue. 

4 3 12 Apr-30

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Greenhouse gas emissions inventory sector by sector published and 

approved by the City Council. This identifies the scale of the challenge to 

achieve a net zero Exeter by 2030. It includes a range of targets on an annual 

basis to achieve in a linear progression the decarbonisation of the city. The 

report identified the sectors where the greatest reductions required, namely 

buildings, energy and transport. In the absence of funding or legal powers to 

effect change, Exeter City Futures has organised a number of workshops to 

explore the feasibility and willingness to look at different approaches to 

securing change.  

Transport initiatives to support a step change in active travel and/or use of 

public transport.

Expansion of district heating networks

Accelerate roll out of EV charging infrastructure, 

Work continues with the green construction group at the Exeter College 

regarding the scope of the pipeline for retrofit of homes. The scale of the 

challenge is becoming clearer every day. For example a recent meeting with a 

heat pump manufacturer with the largest market share in the country revealed 

that it was installing 18k homes pa across the country. The net zero agenda 

for the city requires us to deliver 42,000 heat pumps to homes in the city 

alone. This would be on top of a district heat network for a further 11,200 

homes. The scale of the challenge is extraordinary. 

Exeter City Futures together with the Centre for Leadership at the University 

of Exeter hosted a meeting of a number of organisational leaders to explore 

the leadership challenge to realise a net zero goal and it revealed good 

practice being pursued by the Met Office in its journey to net zero and the 

appetite for collaboration from parties across the city. Positive experiences 

and willingness to work together is suggestive of a strong commitment to the 

agenda notwithstanding the obvious challenges to get to a 2030 goal. 

Train services especially along the Waterloo to Exeter line have impacted 

negatively on supporting people to shift from car to public transport. A less 

than satisfactory bus services within the city has been widely commented 

upon throughout the city and is setting us backwards in our strategy to 

support active travel and a shift to public transport. 

Policies to support the net zero Exeter 2030 goal are reflected in the draft city 

plan. 

Work of scrutiny to support the green construction agenda is in plan and a 

range of parties are now fully co-operating with Exeter College to firm up a 

pipeline. Recruitment of skilled labour to support retrofit work is an obvious 

bottle neck and members may want to probe this issue further with Exeter 

College.

Exeter City Fund is still being looked at by scrutiny committee and members 

will need to take a view on whether the fund is the appropriate mechanism to 

fund the green construction ambition of the City Council. Presently there is 

little comfort that can be drawn from national government on funding for 

housebuilding and regeneration or the quality of development desired by the 

city council in pursuance of the net zero agenda. The City Fund was an 

attempt to find such a mechanism. If this approach is not acceptable to 

members, there is no obvious alternative that has been identified. 

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Corporate Risk Register

Inability to deliver Carbon Net Zero aspirations for Exeter by 2030 (External)

Potential Causes:

- Financial pressure and economics of carbon reduction

- Behavioural challenges over influencing businesses and public

- Technical capability to deliver

- Lack of control over all stakeholders (businesses, visitors etc.)

- Political environment and acceptance of policy changes required

- Misalignment with Devon Climate Plan

- Failure to engage with resident and business of Exeter to ensure solutions proposed meet real need

Potential Impacts:

- Reputational 

- Failure to deliver inclusive growth and retain vibrancy of Exeter as a great place to live

- Conflict within Region 

- Short term changes may not be sustainable

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

P
age 95



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

September 2022:

Updates to work to be done provided.

November 2022:

The details of the risk and corresponding mitigations have been updated.  It should also be noted that, following the Scrutiny Governance review, it has been proposed that a Strategic Scrutiny Sub Committee for Climate Change is established, 

however, this is pending approval by Council in the New Year.

Greenhouse gas emissions inventory sector by sector published and 

approved by the City Council. This identifies the scale of the challenge to 

achieve a net zero Exeter by 2030. It includes a range of targets on an annual 

basis to achieve in a linear progression the decarbonisation of the city. The 

report identified the sectors where the greatest reductions required, namely 

buildings, energy and transport. In the absence of funding or legal powers to 

effect change, Exeter City Futures has organised a number of workshops to 

explore the feasibility and willingness to look at different approaches to 

securing change.  

Transport initiatives to support a step change in active travel and/or use of 

public transport.

Expansion of district heating networks

Accelerate roll out of EV charging infrastructure, 

Work continues with the green construction group at the Exeter College 

regarding the scope of the pipeline for retrofit of homes. The scale of the 

challenge is becoming clearer every day. For example a recent meeting with a 

heat pump manufacturer with the largest market share in the country revealed 

that it was installing 18k homes pa across the country. The net zero agenda 

for the city requires us to deliver 42,000 heat pumps to homes in the city 

alone. This would be on top of a district heat network for a further 11,200 

homes. The scale of the challenge is extraordinary. 

Exeter City Futures together with the Centre for Leadership at the University 

of Exeter hosted a meeting of a number of organisational leaders to explore 

the leadership challenge to realise a net zero goal and it revealed good 

practice being pursued by the Met Office in its journey to net zero and the 

appetite for collaboration from parties across the city. Positive experiences 

and willingness to work together is suggestive of a strong commitment to the 

agenda notwithstanding the obvious challenges to get to a 2030 goal. 

Train services especially along the Waterloo to Exeter line have impacted 

negatively on supporting people to shift from car to public transport. A less 

than satisfactory bus services within the city has been widely commented 

upon throughout the city and is setting us backwards in our strategy to 

support active travel and a shift to public transport. 

Policies to support the net zero Exeter 2030 goal are reflected in the draft city 

plan. 

Work of scrutiny to support the green construction agenda is in plan and a 

range of parties are now fully co-operating with Exeter College to firm up a 

pipeline. Recruitment of skilled labour to support retrofit work is an obvious 

bottle neck and members may want to probe this issue further with Exeter 

College.

Exeter City Fund is still being looked at by scrutiny committee and members 

will need to take a view on whether the fund is the appropriate mechanism to 

fund the green construction ambition of the City Council. Presently there is 

little comfort that can be drawn from national government on funding for 

housebuilding and regeneration or the quality of development desired by the 

city council in pursuance of the net zero agenda. The City Fund was an 

attempt to find such a mechanism. If this approach is not acceptable to 

members, there is no obvious alternative that has been identified. 

P
age 96



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

2

June 2013 Executive 

Updates to be 

provided by Ian 

Collinson, 

Director of City 

Development

4 4 16 - Brownfield opportunities identified and developed into the Liveable Exeter 

strategy

- The Liveable Exeter programme has secured further funding to support 

work on the Liveable programme 

- Higher density developments being encouraged within the city centre.

-Social Housing being developed following the lifting of borrowing cap- 

ambition for 500 homes over 10 years'

- Appropriately briefing members to ensure robust decision making 

processes

- The Council is currently able to demonstrate a housing land supply of 4 

years and 8 months against the 5 year requirement

4 4 16

- The Local plan is continuing to progress with a timetable now established 

and the statement of community involvement developing. The first statutory 

stage of public consultation on the Local Plan was completed in November 

2021 (Regulation 18 Issues Consultation)

- Selling positive image of high quality high density brownfield developments 

through the Liveable Exeter programme.

- using existing planning policy to resist inappropriate development proposals 

in order to continue to protect the character and beauty of the city. 

- regular updating of the 5 year land supply position in order to closely monitor 

land supply in the city

Ongoing

Failure to meet Exeter's Housing supply needs as a planning authority and meet strategic 5 years ambitions

Potential Causes:

-  Inadequate Land supply 

- Not granted enough planning permissions

- Student development cannot be included in housing supply figures

- House builders drip feeding

- Political / community buy in to developments

- Exeter Local Plan not progressing quickly enough, encounters delays in programme, or is delayed by external factors such as changes to the Planning system or though protracted discussions with neighbouring authorities re region wide 

issues. 

Potential Impacts:

- Vulnerability to development coming forwards/gaining consent which is not in keeping with the character of the city and which may be contrary to strategic ambitions - such as the 2040 Vision or net-zero commitment.  

- Financial risks with increased appeals, and potentially lost income

- Social outcomes - inequality, rising social service costs - significant waiting list

- Reputational impact if development on not appropriate location

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

March 2022:

The Planning Inspector for the Pennsylvania Road appeal (held November 2021) has concluded that the Council is able to demonstrate a housing supply of 4 years and 8 months.  Since that appeal decision was received, a further appeal has 

been held for Land at Redhills.  At that appeal hearing, the Council argued that it is now able to demonstrate a 5 year housing supply due to the granting of planning consents since November 2021.  However, until the Redhills appeal decision is 

received, the Council must accept that it cannot demonstrate a 5 housing supply for development management purposes." 

Sept 2022: At the Spruce Close appeal, the Inspector has determined that Exeter does not have  5-year land supply. The Planning Committee has resolved to refuse the former Police Station, Heavitree Road application for PBSA and Co-living. 

The Director of City Development has signed a PPA to bring forward a planning application for land at Water Lane. ECC has been granted a further £250,000 government capacity funding for 2020/21 to support Liveable Exeter. The Statement 

of Community Involvement has been adopted; Executive has approved the outline draft Exeter Plan for public consultation, commencing 26.09.22; consultants have been appointed to develop a set of Liveable Exeter principles and a detailed 

design code for Water Lane and Marsh Barton.

Nov 2022: Director City Development is leading a piece of work to dive deeper to understand the risks to the City's housing pipeline and Liveable Exeter.  This is a corporate project and will carry over into the New Year. It will conclude with a 

report to Executive.  The work is still being scoped at this stage.

P
age 97



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

3

June 2019 Baan Al-Khafaji

Director 

Corporate 

Services

3 3 9 - Market supplement scheme in place

- Apprenticeship opportunities for new and existing staff

- Employing part qualified staff and training them (internal and external) - 

procurement, planning etc.

- Improvements in metric tracking (age, gender, skills profiles) 

- Business Partnering model allowing for greater collaboration between 

service areas and HR

-  Metrics reported to SMB 

2 3 6 - Ensure robust implementation of new workforce planning process (local 

mgmt team led)

- Utilising agile program to compliment modernisation of work environment

- Review of progress against GDR.

Ongoing

Failure to adapt council workforce to ensure appropriate skills and experience

Potential Causes:

- Ageing workforce (half of staff over 50, considerable enough

- Difficulty to recruit into key areas - professional areas (planners, lawyers) 

- Empowerment, skills and engagement of managers to enable this change

Potential Impacts:

- Loss of experience

- Increased spending on agency workers

- Not having cost effective council services delivering the right outcomes 

- Service disruption 

- Cost of appeals / challenges across the council services

- Increased stress / pressure on workforce

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

March 2022:  No further update received

June 2022: No further update received

November 2022:  No further updates

P
age 98



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

4

January 2018 Dave Hodgson - 

Director 

Finance

4 4 16 - Detailed MTFP assessed and agreed with Members

- One Exeter plan agreed and being implemented with suitable governance 

arrangements in place. 

- Budget for 2022-23 agreed with significant reserves to protect against 

Covid related income losses.

- Significant investment in city centre regeneration (St Sidwell's point & bus 

station) including developing a new vision for the rest of the site which 

includes mixed use

- Business Development manager extended to continue to identify and 

grow commercial opportunities

- Strong level of unringfenced general fund reserves to protect against 

shocks

2 4 8 - Continue to respond to consultations making case for council

'- Lobby government for relaxation of council tax increase restrictions

- The Council has a clear strategy to address the £6m savings required, 

although the exact timing of Government decisions around Business Rates 

and New Homes Bonus remains uncertain.                                                                                                    

- Significant funding in an earmarked Reserve to protect against income 

shortfalls or timing issues with reductions.                                                     - 

Further work being undertaken to identify (or bring forward) options to address 

further reductions required.

Feb-23

Maintaining the Financial Sustainability of the Council

Potential Causes:

- Fair funding review from central government involving rebase lining of business rates (income loss of £2.5m per annum) and determination of a new formula which could have funding implications.

- Inability to deliver £6.6m savings target over four year period.

- Inability to grow Exeter city centre and associated business rates etc.

- Policy, regulatory or legislative changes which are not fully funded from central govt.

- Impact of high inflation, rising interest rates and other external economic factors.

Potential Impacts:

- unable to balance budget.

- reduced income for council services.

- larger than anticipated cuts (in year or over longer term).

- reduction in reserves.

- impacts on council services and therefore resident outcomes.

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

September 2022:  The MTFP has been updated and the pay award / inflation means that savings are required totalling £6.6m regardless of the outcome of Government decisions.  

November 2022:  Director Finance to provide a detailed verbal update at the A&G meeting.

P
age 99



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

5

August 2021 Dave Hodgson - 

Director 

Finance

4 4 16 The global economic impacts are difficult to mitigate.  Members may need 

to reprioritise, accept higher tender costs or delay the capital programme.  

Those projects already underway will see additional costs arising.

4 4 16 Review existing capital programme with a view to deferring and removing 

schemes.  Change of emphasis to internally borrow in the short term to offset 

interest rate rises.

Feb-23

Increased cost of all capital building Projects

Potential Causes:

                                                        

-  Shortages of materials and labour causing delay and increased costs across the capital programme.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

-  Interest Rate rises causing the cost of borrowing to rise significantly.    

Potential impacts 

-  Increased costs to Council 

-  Delay in all projects, predominantly the condition survey projects and HRA programme, leading to prolonged periods of buildings being below the standard the Council is aiming for.

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

September 2022:  Interest rates have now increased to around 2.5% higher than at the start of the year. This adds around £25,000 per million borrowed.  This will have a negative impact on the revenue position of the Council, when further 

external borrowing is required.

November 2022:  Director Finance to provide a detailed verbal update at the A&G meeting

P
age 100



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

6

Nov 21 Executive

'Ian Collinson- 

Director City 

Development

4 4 16 - Brownfield land release fund: 

      - project management capacity brought in

      - sites included in ECL business case

- Director of Planning & Development appointed

- examples of the strategic investment required are the housing 

infrastructure fund (HIF) and other strategic investment funds such as 

administered by One Public Estate and the Department for Levelling Up, 

Housing and Communities

- some funding has been secured on an annual basis from Homes England

- LDA design commissioned to produce Marsh Barton Development 

framework

- DCC & ECC progressing work on development brief for Southgate

4 4 16  work to be undertaken with One Public Estate on the Exeter City Fund 

concept

- there needs to be a willingness to acquire land and property to move forward 

in a sensible phased programme including a willingness to compulsory 

purchase land

- need to step up the support commensurate with the scale and pace of 

development required

- new local plan that includes the vision and principles as part of the formal 

planning policy 

- the Council adopts an enabling culture rather than relying on a regulatory 

culture

- Exeter City Living to lead by example

- Exeter Place Board to bring together the city's institutions to take ownership 

of the vision and aspirations and to work collectively on obstacles to delivery

- draft tender for parking strategy

- City Fund outline business case in draft with Scrutiny Committee

- Officer to continue to approach landowners in key locations to bring forward 

key sites in the programme

Nov-24

Failure to deliver the Liveable Exeter Programme

Potential Causes:

- a challenge to the viability of development

- inadequate funding for brownfield land regeneration

- lack of staff resources to support the work

- inability to address complex land assembly and infrastructure challenges

- significant abnormal costs associated with this type of programme

Potential impacts

- increased costs to the Council

- carbon neutral not achieved by 2030

- city housing needs not met by 2040

- new communities not created

- active and accessible city aspirations not met

- new homes do not meet Garden City principles

- housing built in locations the council is seeking to avoidP
age 101



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

Tracking Notes and Monitoring:

Sept 2022: 

Joint Scrutiny Committee has held three meetings to better understand the Exeter Development Fund concept. This has identified the outline business case, the failings with the current business as usual model, the opportunities with 

development corporation models of delivery, and the challenges to visibility as a consequence of the current approaches to funding development. A Task and Finish Group has been established for scrutiny to conclude its consideration of the 

concept prior to Executive considering the proposal. DLUHC Garden Communities capacity funding is being used effectively to help unlock sites, but this funding is not sufficient and is at risk of being scrapped. The level of resources required to 

support an ambitious transformation programme is significant and whilst the development corporation model, would be a means to secure greater resources to the programme, this could be years away. There are tangible examples of progress 

being made with the programme and progress with the Exeter Plan preparation (see also above under Risk 2). There is strong private sector interest in the Water Lane area and St David's Station/Red Cow and ECC has built a strong 

collaborative approach with land owners/developers. Consultants have been engaged to master plan the Marsh Barton area and develop a strategic design code for Water Lane. This work could be replicated across other strategic sites, given 

sufficient resources. However strategic uncertainty is hitting confidence in the construction sector where inflation is hurting viability. Developers are unable/unwilling to risk significant investment in bringing forward brownfield land. Homes 

England is reluctant to commit government funding to provide infrastructure loans/grant and acquire land to unlock sites. ECL is continuing to develop a pipeline of deliverable sites on Council owned land with support from City Development. 

Recent appeal decisions have left the Council in a weak policy position.

Nov 2022: As for risk 2 the Director City Development is leading a piece of work to dive deeper to understand the risks to the City's housing pipeline and Liveable Exeter.  This is a corporate project and will carry over into the New Year. It will 

conclude with a report to Executive.  The work is still being scoped at this stage. 

P
age 102



October 2022

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

L
'h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

R
is

k
 

S
c
o

re

Review Month:

Target 

Implementat

ion Date

Date Risk 

Identified

Risk 

Owner

Inherent Risk

Existing Mitigations & Controls  (What has been done to 

control the risk?)

Residual Risk

Ref Further Mitigations & Controls to be put into place

7 Inability to deliver Carbon Net Zero aspirations for Exeter City Council operations by 2030 (Internal)

At the request of members, with effect from June 2022 this risk is now the subject of a separate risk register to be present half yearly to the Audit & Governance Committee by the Corporate Energy Manager, Net Zero Team

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Audit and Governance Committee

	2 Minutes
	6 External Auditor's Annual Audit Report on Exeter City Council 2020/21
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report Quarter 2
	1.	What is the report about?
	1.1	To report on internal audit work carried out during the period 1st July to 30th September 2022, to advise on overall progress against the Audit Plan and to report any emerging issues requiring consideration.
	9. 	How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?
	10. 	What risks are there and how can they be reduced?
	Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
	Background papers used in compiling this report:
	None
	Contact for enquiries:
	Democratic Services (Committees)
	Room 2.3
	01392 265115
	7. IAP Appendix A Progress of Audit Plan Final
	7.IAP Appendix BSignificant Governance Issues 2021-22 AGS Update Nov 2022 Final

	8 Counter Fraud Strategy
	REPORT TO AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	Is this a Key Decision?
	Is this an Executive or Council Function?
	1.	What is the report about?
	2.	Recommendations:
	3.	Reasons for the recommendation:
	4.	What are the resource implications including non financial resources.	4.1  		None.
	5.	Section 151 Officer comments:
	6.	What are the legal aspects?
	7.	Monitoring Officer’s comments:
	8.	Report details
	9.	How does the decision contribute to the Council’s Corporate Plan?
	10.	What risks are there and how can they be reduced?
	11.	Equality Act 2010 (The Act)
	12.	Carbon Footprint (Environmental) Implications:
	13.	Are there any other options?
	Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as amended)
	8.Counter Fraud Strategy Appendix A Final
	1.0  Introduction
	2.0  Definitions
	3.0  Key principles
	4.0  Corporate framework
	5.0  Roles and responsibilities
	5.1  Management responsibilities
	5.2  Employees’ responsibilities
	5.3  Councillors’ responsibilities
	5.4 Role of the responsible officer
	5.5  Role of internal audit
	5.6  Role of the external auditor
	5.7  Culture

	6.0  Prevention Strategy
	7.0  Detection Strategy
	8.0  Fraud Response Plan
	9.0  Review


	9 Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Review of Complaints 2021-22
	Background papers used in compiling this report:-

	10 Review of Corporate Risk Register
	Corporate Risk Register Appendix A Final




